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Young Adult Ex-Offenders Education, Service-
Learning and Employment Program (RFP #U-09) 

Questions and Answers (Final Document, dated May 17, 2013)  

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/22/2013 
Juvenile Offender 
 

Q1.   Can providers serve youth who were convicted as an adult with a Juvenile Offender status and placed in 
an OCFS Juvenile Justice secure facility, or was it the intent to exclude this population from the RFP? 
[Note: Original Response posted on May 6, 2013 has been revised and appears below] 

 

A1.   No, a provider cannot serve a youth who was convicted as an adult with a Juvenile Offender (JO) status 
and placed in an OCFS Juvenile Justice secure facility.  For purposes of this RFP, a JO is an individual who 
is 13, 14, 15 and charged with committing a serious crime and other violent felonies.  The average age of 
JO’s released from secured facilities because of their length of stay is 17.5 and these young offenders will 
have an adult conviction record. 

Information on Page 4 of the RFP states that the target population for this RFP is as follows: 
 

Young adult ex-offenders who have never been convicted as an adult under Federal and/or State law or 
convicted of violent or sexual offenses who are:  

 18 to 21 years of age;  

 unemployed; and  

 located in NYC.  

The Department wants to target available limited dollars towards serving the above mentioned 
population.  The level of services required under this RFP does not include the more intensive services 
that would be necessary to successfully serve young adults with JO convictions.  For this reason, service 
providers that solicit funding under this RFP to serve young adults who were convicted as an adult with a 
JO conviction will not be considered for award. 
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/22/2013 
Juvenile Offender & 
Delinquents 
 

Q2.    Also when you refer to ex-offenders, do you mean Juvenile Offenders (JO) or Juvenile Delinquents (JD)? 
Because the re-arrest figures you cited in your background section of the RFP is closely aligned with our 
Juvenile Offender population.  

 

A2.    As indicated in Q1, providers are not permitted to serve young adults who were convicted as an adult 
with a JO conviction.  In the Background section of the RFP, reference is made to the two year re-arrest 
rate for young adult ex-offenders by stating; “In New York State, about 70% of young adult ex-offenders 
are rearrested within two years of their release.”  Since this percentage is based on a combined figure for 
JO and JD cited in the October 2011 OCFS FACT SHEET, the term ‘ex-offender’ refers to both JO and JD.  

The October 2011 OCFS FACT SHEET that was used to cite statistics in the RFP can be found at:  
http://www.ocfs.state.ny.us/main/detention_reform/Recidivism%20fact%20sheet.pdf 

 

 

 

http://www.ocfs.state.ny.us/main/detention_reform/Recidivism%20fact%20sheet.pdf
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/24/2013 
Youthful Offender 
 

Q3.   The RFP defines eligible participants to be: 

          Young adult ex-offenders who have never been convicted as an adult under Federal and/or State law 
or convicted of violent or sexual offenses who are: 

 
                  o 18 to 21 years of age; 
                  o unemployed; and 
                  o located in NYC. 
 
The RFP also references partnerships with the Juvenile Justice System. 
 
In NYS, anyone over the age of 16 is treated as an adult for criminal justice purposes.  The juvenile 
justice system only works with youth under the age of 16.  However, young people between the ages 
of 16 - 18 may be afforded "Youthful Offender" (YO) status.  If a young person receives YO, he or she 
has NOT been CONVICTED of a crime.   
 
Can we apply to serve the YO population? 
 
If not, can you clarify the target population, given that at 16, in NYS, one is not in the juvenile justice 
system so they could not be the referral source, but at 18, one could be a YO but would be on adult 
probation.  19-21 year olds are not eligible for YO and thus would have an adult conviction. 

 

A3.   Yes, applicants may apply to serve the YO population.  Youth that have received YO adjudication can be 
served under this RFP since this is adjudication and not a conviction, as long as they meet the 
remaining eligible participant criteria.   

It is still possible to receive program referrals from the Juvenile Justice System for youth that have 
aged out of the Juvenile Justice System but are currently under its community supervision (e.g., a 
young adult who is almost 18 and housed in a Secure Center could be served by this RFP).  However, 
the Department is aware that it may be difficult to coordinate referrals from the Juvenile Justice 
System under this RFP for the targeted age group.  As such, it is not required to receive participant 
referrals through the Juvenile Justice System for this RFP.  The awardee under this grant opportunity 
will be encouraged to work with the Juvenile Justice System to identify any potential referrals that may 
benefit from program services.Applicants must identify in their proposal possible referral sources for 
eligible participants who are 18 to 21 years of age including:  community-based organizations (CBOs), 
faith-based organizations (FBOs), the NYS Department of Corrections and Community Supervision 
(DOCCS), The NYS Office of Probation and Correctional Alternatives, the NYS Unified Court System, and 
other referral agencies and organizations that serve this population.   
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Date Received: 
Target: 

 4/26/2013 
Youthful Offender 
Adjudication 
 

Q4.    Regarding the definition of "Young adult ex-offenders who have never been convicted as an adult 
under Federal and/or State law or convicted of violent or sexual offenses" (p.4)--would youth be 
considered eligible who:  

1) Have a juvenile justice record and whose only conviction in the adult system was replaced by 
a youthful offender adjudication; or  

2) Lack a juvenile justice record, but have a conviction in the adult system that was replaced by 
youthful offender adjudication?   

 

A4.    The answer to #1 is “yes” under the following conditions: 

 For the purposes of this RFP, if an otherwise eligible young adult ex-offender was previously 
convicted as an adult but the conviction was subsequently lessened to a Youthful Offender (YO) 
or Juvenile Delinquent (JD) adjudication and the young adult does not have any other 
convictions that would disqualify him or her from being an eligible participant, then the young 
adult is eligible to be served under this RFP. 

 

The answer to #2 is “yes” under the following conditions: 

 For the purposes of this RFP, if an otherwise eligible young adult ex-offender lacks a juvenile 
justice record but has a conviction in the adult system that was replaced by a YO or JD 
adjudication and the young adult does not have any other convictions that would disqualify him 
or her from being an eligible participant, then the young adult is eligible to be served under the 
RFP. 
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/26/2013 
YO status 
 

Q5.    If youthful offender status is not counted as a conviction, for the purposes of determining program 
eligibility, would it similarly be held that a young person granted youthful offender status for a violent 
or sexual offense would remain eligible for the program? 

 

A5.    If an otherwise eligible young adult ex-offender has been convicted as an adult or Juvenile Offender 
(JO) for a violent or sexual offense but the conviction(s) has been lessened to a Youthful Offender (YO) 
or Juvenile Delinquent (JD) adjudication and the young adult does not have any other convictions that 
would disqualify him or her from being an eligible participant, then the young adult is eligible to be 
served under the RFP. 

 

 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/29/2013 
Juvenile Justice System 
 

Q6.  Can you define how we are to serve 18-21 year olds but we're dealing with the juvenile justice system? 
 

A6.  Please refer to the answer for Question 3. 
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/29/2013 
Hours of Participation 
 

Q7.    Can you define the 30–35 participation hours? 
 

A7.    This program is designed for young adults that could benefit from a concentration of services.  The 
program aims to serve young adults who need stabilization services, work readiness, educational 
interventions, career development, etc.  Providing 30-35 hours of these services per week will help 
young adults successfully develop and complete various goals and benchmarks.  Using Attachment 13 as 
a guide, an example of a 35 hour a week program could include: 

 Phase 1: 10 hours per week devoted to stabilization to include counseling and support activities, 17 
hours per week devoted to educational interventions to include work-readiness and career 
development, 8 hours per week devoted to the introduction of service learning.   

 Phase 2: 16 hours per week devoted to service learning, 14 hours per week devoted to educational 
interventions including career development, 5 hours per week devoted to support activities.    

 Phase 3: hours will vary depending on whether or not the student is: employed full-time or part-time, 
a part-time student, or unemployed.  Also, services needed, which will include follow-up, help 
determine how the 30-35 hours are developed. 

 
 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/29/2013 
Bidder’s Webinar 
 

Q8.    Also, will these slides [from the April 29th Bidders Webinar] be available online afterwards? 
 

A8.    The slides from the April 29, 2013 Bidders Webinar will not be posted online.  All of the information 
presented on during this webinar can be found in the RFP.  Questions regarding the RFP can be 
submitted to specialpopulations@labor.ny.gov until May 13, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

mailto:specialpopulations@labor.ny.gov
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 4/29/2013 
GED 
 

Q9.   So there will no longer be a GED program component? [Note: Original Response posted May 6, 2013 
has been revised and appears below] 

 

A9.    Yes, the GED will continue to be a component of program services.  More specifically, the response to 
your question can be found in Section II.B.3 of the RFP on pp 9-10 as quoted below: 

 
 As of January 1, 2014, the current national GED® exam will no longer be accepted by the New York 
State Education Department (NYSED) as a path to a valid high school equivalency diploma. There is no 
guarantee at this time that the New York State Education Department will recognize the successful 
completion of the new GED exam in another state outside of New York.  

 
The successful grant awardee should have a plan in place to ensure that those young adults who are 
on track to take the existing GED exam do so by December 31, 2013.  Any young adult who will be 
tested after that date should be prepared for the new, New York State High School Equivalency exam.  
NYSED is currently reviewing two proposals for this new high school equivalency exam alternative to 
the GED®.  One of the proposals will be selected in the coming months.  

 
Additional information on the New York State High School Equivalency exam will be provided to the 
awardee as it becomes available. 

 

A9.    The attainment of a high school equivalency diploma will continue to be a component of the RFP.  
However, the existing GED exam will cease to be offered in New York on December 31, 2013.  So for 
those young adults who are on track to take the GED, they need to be prepared to take the existing 
exam by December 31, 2013. 

Starting January 1, 2014, any young adult seeking to attain their high school equivalency diploma will 
take the replacement exam identified by the NY State Education Department (SED), the Test Assessing 
Secondary Completion (TASC).  NYSDOL will update and work with the awardee in making the transition 
to the new exam.  However, SED will also provide updates and resources on the Engage NY website 
(www.engageny.org).  Many testing specifics, such as available testing accommodations, have yet to be 
solidified by SED, but will be made public when they are determined.  For purposes of the RFP, 
applicants need to identify a plan to ensure that those young adults who are on track to take the existing 
GED exam do so by December 31, 2013.  Your application should also describe a plan of how you will 
work with young adults who will be tested after December 31, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.engageny.org/
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/3/2013 
Enrollment and 
Outcomes 
 

Q10.  Forgive me if I’m missing something, but the RFP states that we need to serve 75 participants, between 
30 and 35 hours a week, over 18 months, but does not seem to say for how many weeks.  Are we to 
assume that they just need to be in the program long enough to meet the outcome performance 
requirements and that’s it?  A little clarification on exactly what final outcomes you expect would be 
very helpful. 

 

A10.  No, in addition to the outcome performance requirements (Section II .C, Page 11), the program needs to 
be long enough to accommodate the services mentioned in Section II, starting on page 5.  The program 
is required to deliver services in five components, each of which would take a different amount of time 
based on the young adult’s level of stabilization and support needs, career and educational goals, and 
barriers to employment.  The Department anticipates that the program could take anywhere from 9 to 
18 months of youth participation, which includes the 2 to 4 months required for follow-up services.  Your 
program model needs to be tailored and targeted for each young adult, who is most in need of the 
required services described in the RFP (Section II, Page 5).  For example, if a young adult is work ready 
and does not need intensive support and stabilization activities, then this young adult is not in need of 
the services described in the RFP, which suggests this program may not be best for him/her. 

The Department endorses the program model in Attachment 13.  The timeframe of phases would 
depend on the needs and the skill levels of the young adult upon entering the program.  Each young 
adult will have different levels of needs and will progress at different rates, so each phase could have 
young adults entering and exiting at different times.  For example: 

 One to five months (Phase 1): Could include recruitment, assessments, any stabilization activities 
and/or services needed, preparation for work readiness credential, beginning stages of meaningful 
service-learning and basic educational skills attainment. 

 Six to nine months (Phase 2): Could include in-depth career and education planning and 
development, preparation for in-demand industry credential and implementation of service-
learning and activities remaining from Phase 1.  

 Two to four months (Phase 3): Must include transition and follow-up support for young adults and 
employers or post secondary institutions in which the young adult is enrolled.  

A preliminary discussion focusing on outcomes can be found in Section IIC of the RFP.  Final outcome 
expectations will be discussed during contract negotiations with the awardees.  In conclusion, the length 
of time for which the young adult is engaged with the program will depend upon the time required by 
the young adult to meet the expected outcomes and obtain the required services.  
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/8/2013 
Participant Eligibility 
 

Q11.  Does ex-offender mean that the individual must have been recently in custody?  Or can we include 
adjudicated youth on probation?  If they must be returning from custody, can we include youth from 
OCFS, DOC, and DOCCS? 

 

A11.  No, for purposes of this RFP, ex-offender does not mean that the individual must have been recently in 
custody.  You can include adjudicated youth on probation and youth from OCFS, DOC and DOCCS as long 
as the young adult meets the following criteria: 

 

 Never been convicted as an adult under Federal and/or State law 

 Never been convicted of violent or sexual offenses 

 18 to 21 years of age 

 Unemployed 

 Located in NYC 
 

 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Enrollment 
 

Q12.  What is the minimum length of time a participant is expected to be engaged in the program? 
 

A12.  The minimum length of time a participant is expected to be engaged in the program is the time required 
to meet the program outcomes (Section II.C, Page 11) and the time needed to accommodate required 
services (Section II) for the young adult.  The Department anticipates that the program could take 
anywhere from 9 to 18 months of youth participation which includes the 2 to 4 months required for 
follow-up services.  The length of the program depends on the needs and the skill levels of the young 
adult upon entering the program.  The program needs to be tailored and targeted for young adults who 
are most in need of the required services described in the RFP (Section II, Page 5).  Please refer to Q10 
above for additional information. 
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Enrollment 
 

Q13.  Does DOL expect open/rolling enrollment over the program period or can the program be designed with 
classes/cohorts? 

 

A13.  No, there is no DOL defined expectation of program enrollment.  However, your program design should 
choose whichever enrollment strategy is best for your program.  The Department endorses the specific 
program model identified in Attachment 13 of the RFP for serving young adult ex-offenders.  Using this 
model, limited open/rolling enrollment could take place.  You should keep in mind that this type of 
limited enrollment should take into consideration the amount of time a young adult would need to 
successfully participate in and complete all of the five required core components. 

 

 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Letter of Support 
 

Q14.  In the newly released Questions and Answers, A3 now states “As such, it is not required to receive 
participant referrals through the Juvenile Justice System for this RFP.”  Does this mean we no longer 
need the required letter of support from the Juvenile Justice System? 

 

A14.  Yes, applicants are not required to submit a letter of support from the Juvenile Justice System. 
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Enrollment 
 

Q15.  As the program requirements state that participants must “have never been convicted as an adult under 
Federal and/or State law,” is it correct to assume we may serve participants with past juvenile justice 
involvement who have cases pending in adult court?  If so, would we have to force a participant to exit 
the program if they receive an adult conviction while they are already enrolled? 

 

A15.  Yes, providers may serve participants with past juvenile justice involvement who have cases pending in 
adult court.  If an individual receives an adult conviction while enrolled in the program, a final 
determination of continued enrollment status will be made by the Department after a discussion with the 
provider’s case manager.  If the individual is incarcerated as a result of the adult conviction, enrollment in 
the program is terminated. 

  
 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Matched and/or 
Leveraged funds 

Q16.  Could you please describe what funds are considered matched or leveraged (RFP Section IV.D.1 on p. 16).  
Does this need to be new funding?  Would in-kind expenses qualify? 

 

A16.  Matching or leveraged funds are other funds available to the applicant or their partners to support the 
costs of services under the project that are budgeted to be paid in pre-determined amounts in relation to 
funds awarded by the Department.  The Department is not concerned with the source of funding used to 
match; however, the applicant should identify the ratio of matching funds to grant funds. For example, a 
1:1 ratio would indicate that for every $1 in awarded grant funds, the provider will match $1. 

Matching or leveraged funds can be used to support costs associated with the project budget lines 
including Staff Salaries, Fringe Benefits, Contracted Services, Staff Travel Expenses, Space/Utilities, Other 
Operating Expenses, Miscellaneous Participant Expenses, and Participant Payments.  Basically, any 
tangible expense incurred by the provider that will not be reimbursed with grant funds can be considered 
matching or leveraged funds as long these expenses being considered as matched or leveraged funds are 
for the direct benefit or use of the planned program.   

If in-kind expenses are identified in the budget form and narrative along with a reasonable valuation, the 
Department will consider this valuation for scoring purposes in the calculation of matched/leveraged 
funding. 

  
 



Young Adult Ex-Offenders Education, Service-Learning and Employment Program – Questions and Answers 
 

Page 12 of 13 
 

 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Start-up 
 

Q17.  Please clarify “immediate start-up of operation” in Section V.B. at the top of page 18.  Do you expect us 
to be able to serve clients on Day 1 of the contract? 

 

A17.  No, the Department does not expect providers to serve clients on Day 1 of the contract.  The Department 
understands that start-up activities, getting staff in place, and participant recruitment efforts (among 
other activities) are necessary.  However, the Department is looking for applicants that can clearly 
identify in their RFP a program design that will have timely start-up activities.  Key to timely start-up 
includes having staff on board, experience in serving the target population, and key linkages/partnerships 
in place to provide required services and components.  

 

 

Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Work Readiness Credential 
 

Q18.  Section II.B.1.c on page 7 states that young adult participants must participate in training that prepares 
them for an employer-recognized work-readiness credential.  Would the New York City Food Protection 
Certificate or OSHA 10 certification qualify for work readiness, as these position trainees for employment 
in particular fields? 

 

A18.  No, the New York City Food Protection Certificate and OSHA 10 certification would not be acceptable as 
work readiness preparation but would be acceptable as an industry-recognized credential as outlined in 
the expected outcomes in the RFP.     

 

What is meant by work readiness in the RFP is a broader preparation and training that is not specific to an 
occupation but one that prepares young adults with the knowledge, skills, and abilities to succeed in 
entry-level work.  
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Date Received: 
Topic: 

 5/13/2013 
Work Readiness Credential 
 

Q19.  In Section II.B.1.c., at the top of page 8 it states: “Successful completion will be demonstrated by the 
attainment of the NWRC or similar credential.”  Does this mean that participants cannot complete the 
program unless they pass the NWRC?  Or are there both “successful completion” and “unsuccessful 
completions” to the program?  If a participant obtains employment before passing the NWRC, would that 
not be a successful completion? 

 

A19.  Yes, participants can complete the program without the NWRC; however, the Department requires that 
all participants receive work-readiness training that will prepare them to obtain the NWRC or any other 
regionally/nationally recognized work-readiness credential.  

          A participant obtaining employment before passing the NWRC or any other regionally/nationally 
recognized work-readiness training will be viewed as meeting one of the outcome performance 
requirements.  However, meeting just one of the outcome performance requirements does not make this 
a successful overall program completion.  Successful program completion would include successful 
participation in all five core program components, as well as achieving several of the performance 
outcomes. 

 

 


